Jacqui Sinnott-Lacey
Chief Operating Officer
52 Derby Street
Ormskirk
West Lancashire
L39 2DF

Friday, 19 November 2021
CORPORATE AND ENVIRONMENTAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY MEMBER UPDATE
CORPORATE YEAR 2021/22
NOVEMBER 2021 - ISSUE 3
The content of this CORPORATE AND ENVIRONMENTAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
MEMBERS UPDATE covers all the services.
If a Member wishes to receive further information on anything in the Update, please
contact the officer named at the beginning of the article.
If a Member wants to place an item on the Committee agenda in connection with any
article in the Update, please provide it to member.services@westlancs.gov.uk or
telephone 01695 585207 by 12 Noon on FRIDAY, 26 NOVEMBER 2021.
Members Item/Councillor Call for Action
If a Member wants to place an item on the Corporate and Environmental O&S Committee
Agenda, please complete the attached Member Item/Councillor Call for Action Pro Forma
(Appendix B) and return it to member.services@westlancs.gov.uk by 12 Noon on Friday,
26 November 2021.
The Press are asked to contact the Digital Communications Manager for further
information on this Update.

CONTENTS
1.

GENERAL

1a

MINUTES OF LANCASHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL'S HEALTH
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

67 - 68

1b

MINUTES OF THE LANCASHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

69 - 70

2.

ACTIONS UNDER DELEGATED AUTHORITY

2a

EXEMPTION FROM CONTRACTS PROCEDURE RULES:
LIVERPOOL CITY REGION AND WEST LANCASHIRE JOINT
RECREATION MITIGATION STRATEGY

71 - 74

2b

LEISURE CONTRACT PROCUREMENT EXEMPTION
(This item is not for publication by virtue of paragraph 3 (financial /
business affairs) of part 1 of schedule 12a to the local government act
1972)

75 - 78

2c

HOME CARE LINK REVIEW
(This item is not for publication by virtue of paragraph 3 (financial /
business affairs) of part 1 of schedule 12a to the local government act
1972)

79 - 82

2d

Exemption to Contract Procedure Rules: Installation of intruder alarm
and Monitoring system for emergency response activation at the
Robert Hodge Centre Stanley Depot
(This item is not for publication by virtue of paragraph 7 (Information
relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the
prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime) of part 1 of schedule
12a to the local government act 1972)

83 - 86

2e

Exemption to Contract Procedure Rules: Standby Out of Hours to
Sheltered Housing Schemes

87 - 88

2f

Exemption to Contract Procedure Rules: Works To make safe 220
dead trees in Banks

89 - 92

3.

PERFORMANCE MONITORING

3a

LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMEN - STATISTICS 2020/21

93 - 100

3b

TAWD VALLEY DEVELOPMENTS - UPDATE REPORT
(This item is not for publication by virtue of paragraph 3 (financial /
business affairs) of part 1 of schedule 12a to the local government act
1972)

101 - 112

We can provide this document, upon request, on audiotape, in large print, in Braille
and in other languages.
For further information, please contact:Chloe McNally on
Or email chloe.mcnally@westlancs.gov.uk

APPENDIX A

‘MEMBER UPDATE’ REQUEST
CORPORATE AND ENVIRONMENTAL OVERVIEW &
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MEETING: 9 DECEMBER 2021
This form must be received by Member Services, 52 Derby Street, Ormskirk by:12 noon on Friday 26 November 2021.

Member Update Issue: 3
Councillor:
Article No:
Subject:
If more information is required in relation to this item, please contact the officer
indicated on the first page of the related report.
Please advise Member Services on 01695 585065 if at any time you wish to withdraw
this item following receipt of further information or e-mail
member.services@westlancs.gov.uk
1. What are your reasons for requesting the item?:

2. What outcome would you wish to see following discussion of the item?

FOR MEMBER SERVICES USE ONLY
Received by:
Date:
Time:
Head of Service informed
Contact Officer informed

Date of Committee:
Chief Officer informed
Chairman informed
Portfolio Holder informed:

MEMBER ITEM/ COUNCILLOR CALL FOR ACTION

APPENDIX B

CORPORATE AND ENVIRONMENTAL OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE AGENDA - MEETING: 9 DECEMBER 2021
This form must be received by Member Services, 52 Derby Street, Ormskirk, before
12 noon on Friday 26 November 2021.
Please advise Member Services on 01695 585065 if at any time you wish to withdraw
this item following receipt of further information or e-mail
member.services@westlancs.gov.uk
Councillor:
Subject:

(Name of Member requesting the item)

1.

What are your reasons for requesting the item:

2.

What outcome would you wish to see following discussion of the item?

3.

What have you already done to resolve this issue?

Potential means of pursuing an issue before resorting to a Member Item/CCfA:








Raise Ward Issue as a ‘Patch Problem’
Discuss issue with an appropriate officer from the Council Service or Agency
Discuss issue with an appropriate Cabinet member
Raise the issue with partner agency, eg. Police, PCT, etc.
Write formal letters on behalf of constituents
Use official complaints procedure or other official route
Put forward the issue as a topic for inclusion on an O&S work programme

The following are potential reasons why your Member Item/CCfA may not be
considered further:












The issue is an individual case
You have not explored the issue fully and exhausted all avenues above
A review into the general issue is included in an O&S work programme
A petition is being submitted to the Council
A complaint is being or has been submitted and the outcome is awaited
A FOI request is being or has been made and the outcome is awaited
Scrutiny of the issue is unlikely to result in improvements for local people
The issue has been the subject of Executive Call In
The issue has been the subject of a Council Motion / Question
The issue is urgent and could be more speedily resolved by other means
The issue is an ‘excluded matter’ (Constitution 18.3)

FOR MEMBER SERVICES USE ONLY
Received by:
Date:
Time:
Head of Service informed
Contact Officer informed

Date of Committee:
Chief Officer informed
Chairman informed
Portfolio Holder informed

Agenda Item 1a

CORPORATE & ENVIRONMENTAL
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE:
MEMBERS UPDATE 2021/22
ISSUE: 3
______________________________________________________________________
Article of:

Corporate Director of Transformation & Resources

Contact for further information: Miss C McNally (Extn 5207)
(E-mail: chloe.mcnally@westlancs.gov.uk)
______________________________________________________________________
MINUTES OF LANCASHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL’S HEALTH SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE
______________________________________________________________________
Wards affected: Borough wide
SUBJECT:

1.0 PURPOSE OF ARTICLE
1.1 To keep Members apprised of developments in relation to Health Overview and
Scrutiny in Lancashire.

2.0

BACKGROUND AND CURRENT POSITION

2.1

The Health and Social Care Act (2001), subsequently superseded by the
National Health Service Act 2006 and the Health and Social Care Act 2012,
extended the powers of Overview and Scrutiny Committees of local authorities
responsible for social services functions to include the power to review and
scrutinise matters relating to the health service in their areas.

2.2

The Health Scrutiny Committee at Lancashire County Council exercises the
statutory functions of a health overview and scrutiny committee. The
Membership of the Committee includes twelve non-voting Co-opted District
Council Members.

2.3

To ensure that Members receive regular updates on the work being
undertaken by the Committee and to provide an opportunity to feed back any
comments via the Council’s representative, a copy of the County Council’s
Health Scrutiny Committee minutes are attached.

3.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

Page 67

3.1 There are no significant sustainability impacts associated with this Article and in
particular, no significant impact on crime and disorder.
4.0 FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
4.1 There are no significant financial or resource implications associated with this
item, except the Officer time in compiling this Article.
5.0 RISK ASSESSMENT
5.1 ThIS Article is for information only and makes no recommendations. It
therefore does not require a formal risk assessment and no changes have been
maade to the risk registeres as a result of this article.

Background Documents
There are no background documents (as defined in Section 100D (5) of the Local
Government Act 1972) to this report.
Equality Impact Assessment
The article does not have any direct impact on members of the public, employees,
elected members and/or stakeholders. Therefore no Equality Impact Assessment is
required.
Appendices
Minutes of the Health Scrutiny Committee can be accessed via the link below:Minutes of Health Scrutiny Committees
14 September 2021

Page 68

Agenda Item 1b

CORPORATE & ENVIRONMENTAL
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE:
MEMBERS UPDATE 2021/2022
ISSUE: 3
______________________________________________________________________
Article of: Corporate Director of Transformation and Resources
Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor G Dowling
Contact for further information: Mrs. Chloe McNally (Extn 5207)
(E-mail: chloe.mcnally@westlancs.gov.uk )
______________________________________________________________________
SUBJECT: MINUTES OF THE LANCASHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
______________________________________________________________________
Wards affected: Borough wide
1.0

PURPOSE OF ARTICLE

1.1

To keep Members apprised of developments in relation to the Lancashire
Police and Crime Panel.

2.0

BACKGROUND AND CURRENT POSITION

2.1

The Police and Crime Panel (PCP) can exercise specific powers under the
Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011, and all other enabling
powers, discharging its functions in accordance with the Policing Order
2011. The Panel has the power to scrutinise Police and Crime
Commissioner (PCC) activities, including the ability to review the Police and
Crime Plan and annual report, request PCC papers and call PCCs and
Chief Constable to public hearings. The PCP can also veto decisions on the
local precept and the appointment of a new Chief Constable.

2.2

The panel is a Joint Committee made up of representatives from the 15
local authorities in the Lancashire Police Force area, together with two
independent co-opted members. West Lancashire's representative is
Councillor G Dowling.

2.3

To ensure that Members receive regular updates on the work being
undertaken by the Panel and to provide an opportunity to feed back any
comments via the Council’s representative, a copy of the PCP’s minutes
are attached.

Page 69

3.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
3.1 There are no significant sustainability impacts associated with this Article and
in particular, no significant impact on crime and disorder.
4.0 FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
4.1 There are no significant financial or resource implications associated with this
item, except the Officer time in compiling this Article.
5.0 RISK ASSESSMENT
5.1 This Article is for information only and makes no recommendations. It
therefore does not require a formal risk assessment and no changes have
been maade to the risk registeres as a result of this article.

Background Documents
There are no background documents (as defined in Section 100D (5) of the Local
Government Act 1972) to this report.
Equality Impact Assessment
The decision does not have any direct impact on members of the public,
employees, elected members and/or stakeholders. Therefore no Equality Impact
Assessment is required.
Appendices
Minutes of the Lancashire Police and Crime Panel can be accessed via the link
below:
Minutes of the Lancashire Police and Crime Panel
20 July 2021

Page 70

Agenda Item 2a
CORPORATE AND ENVIRONMENTAL
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE
MEMBERS UPDATE - 2021/22
ISSUE: 3

Article of:
Relevant Portfolio Holder:

Corporate Director of Place and Community
Councillor Gaynar Owen

Contact for further information: Neil Macfarlane
(E-mail: neil.macfarlane@westlancs.gov.uk)

SUBJECT: Exemption from Contracts Procedure Rules: Liverpool City Region
and West Lancashire Joint Recreation Mitigation Strategy

Wards affected: Borough wide
1.0

PURPOSE OF ARTICLE

1.1 To brief Members on an exemption from West Lancashire Borough Council's
Contracts Procedure Rules, which was sought from and granted by the Chief
Operating Officer, in relation to the Liverpool City Region and West Lancashire
Joint Recreation Mitigation Strategy.

2.0

BACKGROUND

2.1 West Lancashire Borough Council is producing a new Local Plan and as part of
doing so is required to produce a range of supporting evidence to justify the
strategy, policies and site allocations contained within it. Included amongst this is
the need to undertake a Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA), as required by
Article 6 of the EC Habitats Directive (1992) and interpreted into British law by the
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations (2010) and subsequently
consolidated by the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations (2017)
(the Habitats Regulations). The aim of the Habitats Directive is to conserve
natural habitats and wild species across Europe by establishing a network of sites
known as Natura 2000 sites (these are often referred to as European sites).
AECOM were recently appointed to undertake the HRA for the new Local Plan
and have commenced work.

Page 71

2.2 The HRA needs to identify those European habitat sites to be considered and the
likely significant effects of the emerging Local Plan upon them in combination with
other plans and projects. This requires consideration of "impact pathways"
including:
•
•
•
•
•

Air pollution;
Water resources;
Water quality;
Loss of habitat, including as a result of coastal squeeze; and
Disturbance / displacement as a result of urbanisation, visitors and recreation.

If the HRA identifies that one or more of these impact pathways needs to be considered
in more detail then in order to satisfy the Habitats Regulations additional
evidence, beyond the initial scope of the HRA, may be needed.

3.0

2.3

West Lancashire Borough contains two sites that are designated under the
Habitats Regulations which are the Martin Mere Special Protection Area
(SPA) and Ramsar site, and the Ribble and Alt Estuaries SPA and Ramsar
site; the Borough is also within several kilometres of a variety of other such
designated sites, most notably the Sefton Coast Special Area of
Conservation (SAC) which is located within 500m of the Borough
boundary at its closest point.

2.4

The habitats legislation operates under the precautionary principle which
means that the default position in law in the case of disturbance /
displacement as a result of urbanisation, visitors and recreation is that
there will always be significant harm from new housing or other
development which would increase visitor numbers to these designated
sites. Recreational activities would include (but not be limited to); hiking,
dog walking, cycling, and water sports. New development increasing
visitor numbers would arise through the granting of planning permissions
or the allocation of development sites in the West Lancashire Local Plan.

2.5

Plans and projects (which include local plans and planning applications)
are therefore required to provide mitigation for recreation disturbance upon
protected European habitats sites and if development is proposed without
an agreed mitigation solution, irrespective of the effect on scheme viability,
then the plan or project cannot be lawfully permitted.

CURRENT POSITION

3.1 Work on the ceased West Lancashire Local Plan Review (in 2018) elicited a
response from Natural England (NE), who are a statutory consultee, in relation to
the matter of recreational disturbance. Part of the response stated that NE
encourage all Local Planning Authorities to consider adopting a strategic solution
(i.e. across administrative boundaries) for managing recreational disturbance
impacting on both coastal designated sites and functionally linked land (including
the Sefton coast). They indicated that joined up and consistent approaches with

Page 72

neighbouring LPAs would be encouraged on this issue, wherever possible. In
addition, paragraph 1.21 of the adopted West Lancashire Local Plan 2012-27
DPD also recognises the issue of recreation disturbance and states that the
Council will, where appropriate, work in partnership with other local authorities
and relevant
bodies to manage the impacts. These comments, coupled with the need for
residential planning applications to address this matter, make it clear that the
emerging West Lancashire Local Plan 2023-2040 needs to be supported by both
a Habitats Regulations Assessment and a Recreation Mitigation Strategy ('RMS').
3.2 The Merseyside Environmental Advisory Service (MEAS), who operate within Sefton
Metropolitan Borough Council, have been acting on behalf of the Liverpool City
Region Authorities (Halton, Knowsley, Liverpool, Sefton, St Helens and Wirral
Councils) to jointly undertake a Recreation Mitigation Strategy. Consultants,
Footprint Ecology, have been commissioned to undertake this and work has been
ongoing since 2018. MEAS recently extended an invitation to West Lancashire
Borough Council to join this project, which has been prompted by the initial
contract with Footprint Ecology requiring extension for additional work. This
invitation was time limited due to the need to commence survey work for the RMS
at a particular time of year and, as the contract extension was being procured
using Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council's policies and procedures, an
exemption to West Lancashire Borough Council's Contracts Procedure Rules
was required. MEAS will continue to act as project manager for the RMS.
3.3 The Recreation Mitigation Strategy is planned to be completed in 2023 and
represents the strategic solution (i.e. across administrative boundaries) referred
to at paragraph 3.1 above for dealing with recreational disturbance at European
habitats sites, arising as a consequence of planned new development.

4.0

ACTION BEING TAKEN

4.1 The purpose of this update is to notify Members that a request for exemption from
West Lancashire Borough Council's Contracts Procedure Rules has been sought
from, and granted by, the Chief Operating Officer for the reasons set out above. A
separate Record of Decision has been published which contains more detailed
information in terms of the issues and expected outputs from the RMS, as well as
the alternative approaches that were considered and rejected.

5.0

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

5.1 As this report is for information purposes, there are no significant sustainability
impacts associated with it and no significant impact on crime and disorder. The
RMS will have positive sustainability implications environmentally, in that it would
help to maintain the integrity of European designated habitat sites by developing
a strategy for implementing recreation mitigation measures.

Page 73

6.0

FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

6.1 The cost to West Lancashire Borough Council for joining procurement of the
emerging Liverpool City Region Recreation Mitigation Strategy is a fixed fee of
£25,000 which will be paid through existing Strategic Planning revenue budgets.
As indicated above, as the procuring body Sefton's policies and procedures
would be used to acquire the services required and therefore West Lancashire
Borough Council's own procurement procedures are being waived. These Rules
indicate that for contracts over £10,000 but under £50,000 the appropriate Senior
Officer
shall obtain not less than three written quotations. A separate Request for
Exemption from Contracts Procedure Rules has been sought from, and approved
by, the Chief Operating Officer in this regard.
6.2 It is likely that the Council will have further costs associated with developing and,
once completed, delivering the RMS but that is not a part of the contract. There
will be staff resource implications including staff time in attending project group
meetings, supplying data, commenting upon draft documentation and in the
subsequent implementation of the RMS. Presently, this would be covered within
existing Council revenue budgets.

7.0

RISK ASSESSMENT

7.1 This Article is for information only and makes no recommendations. It therefore does
not require a formal risk assessment and no changes have been made to risk
registers. A separate published Record of Decision considers wider risks relating
to the project in greater detail.

8.0

HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS

8.1

There are no health and wellbeing implications arising from this report.

Background Documents
There are no background documents (as defined in Section 100D(5) of the Local
Government Act 1972) to this Article.
Equality Impact Assessment
This article is for information only and does not have any direct impact on members of
the public, employees, elected members and/ or stakeholders. Therefore, no Equality
Impact Assessment is required.

Page 74

Agenda Item 2b

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 75

Agenda Item 2c

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 79

Agenda Item 2d

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 83

Agenda Item 2e
CORPORATE & ENVIRONMENTAL
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE
MEMBERS UPDATE 2021/22
Issue: 3

Article of: Corporate Director of Place and Community
Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor Jenny Wilkie
Contact for further information: Mr S Dwyer (Extn. 3254)
(E-mail: steve.dwyer@westlancs.gov.uk)

SUBJECT: Exemption to Contract Procedure Rules:
Standby Out of Hours to Sheltered Housing Schemes
Wards affected: Borough wide
1.0

PURPOSE OF ARTICLE
To inform members of an exemption to procurement rules.

2.0

STANDBY OUT OF HOURS TO SHELTERED HOUSING SCHEMES

2.1

To provide Out of hours coverage to Home Care Link. Includes Tunstall and fire
detection support to category 1 sheltered schemes. 24 Hour fire detection system
standby and technical support to category services 2 "ADT MX" communal and
tenanted area fire alarm systems. Also limited includes "C Tec" fire alarm
coverage to Mere Court and Pennington Court schemes plus standalone
communal lounge buildings throughout.
Historic Warden service to Category 1 and 2 sheltered schemes (non-resident
individual welfare), Includes automatic doors, Tunstall system, communal
emergency lighting and general communal systems coverage. (Material cost and
subsequent repairs beyond initial first hour at additional cost). Major lift, Tunstall
and automatic door failures to be reported to Home Care Link for specialist
support by West Lancashire Borough Council nominated contractors.
24 Hour fire detection system standby and technical support to category services
2 "ADT MX" communal and tenanted area fire alarm systems. Also limited
includes "C Tec" fire alarm coverage to Mere Court and Pennington Court
schemes plus standalone communal lounge buildings throughout.

Page 87

3.0

CURRENT POSITION

3.1

This service is currently in position and requires an extension to cover the
emergency response service. This exemption is to cover an 8 week period due to
previous contract coming to an end, urgency, resulting from circumstances
beyond the Council’s control, means that there is insufficient time to obtain
tenders in accordance with the procedures set out in Contracts Procedure Rules.

4.0

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

4.1

There are no significant sustainability impacts associated with this article and, in
particular, no significant impact on crime and disorder.

5.0

FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

5.1

There are some financial/ resource implications arising from this article in respect
of Approx £25k (8 weeks cover required) however these have been met from
existing resources.

6.0

RISK ASSESSMENT

6.1

This Article is for information only and makes no recommendations. It therefore
does not require a formal risk assessment and no changes have been made to
risk registers.

9.0

HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS

9.1

Beneficial to staff & tenant health and wellbeing.

Background Documents
There are no background documents (as defined in Section 100D(5) of the Local
Government Act 1972) to this Article.
Equality Impact Assessment
This article is for information only and does not have any direct impact on members of
the public, employees, elected members and/ or stakeholders. Therefore no Equality
Impact Assessment is required.
Appendices
None.

Page 88

Agenda Item 2f
CORPORATE & ENVIRONMENTAL
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE
MEMBERS UPDATE 2021/22
Issue: 3

Article of: Corporate Director of Place and Community
Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor Yvonne Gagen
Contact for further information: Mr D Massey (01695 585265)
(E-mail: daniel.massey@westlancs.gov.uk)

SUBJECT: EXEMPTION TO CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES:
Works To make safe 220 dead trees in Banks.
Wards affected: North Meols Ward
1.0

PURPOSE OF ARTICLE

1.1

To update members on the requirement for a procurement exemption in order to
facilitate the removal of approx. 220 dead, hazardous trees adjacent to Aveling
Drive in Banks

2.0

BACKGROUND

2.1

In November 2020 staff were made aware of flooding on the playing fields on
Aveling drive Banks. The ditch which runs along the North Western boundary of
the site was blocked, water was threatening to overtop and flood the highway
and adjacent properties. Funding was secured (circa £20,000) to identify and
remediate the cause of the blockage. Work to repair the issue was completed in
Spring of 2021

2.2

Discussions with local residents revealed that there had been drainage issues in
the area for a number of years, however there is no proactive inspection
programme in place for either drainage (or tree maintenance).

2.3

During late summer of 2021 it became apparent that the shelter belt of mature
trees between the ditch and playing fields contained a significant number of dead
trees, which had succumbed directly as a result of long-term root submergence.

2.4

The land is held by Leisure, the field playing field is maintained by a local
contractor and the tree stock is managed by the Clean and Green (C&G)
department.

2.5

The C&G department budget for managing trees on Leisure Land is £18,420

Page 89

2.6

The tree contractor who has the tree management contract with the Council was
contacted and asked to provide a quote for the removal of the hazardous trees.
The quote was for £55,000

2.7

After conferring with both the Procurement and Legal departments it was
determined that the contract allowed for other quotes to be sought for the work.

2.8

A quote was provided by another party, for £24,000.

2.9

Due to the scale of the work there was difficulty in securing a third quote

2.10

Due to the level of hazard and difficulty in securing a third quote in a timely
fashion an Exemption to Contracts Procedure Rules was agreed in order to allow
the most cost-effective operator to carry out the works.

3.0

CURRENT POSITION

3.1

The highest risk trees have been felled/made safe.

3.2

The rest of the felling will be carried out from the week beginning the 22 nd of
November.

3.3

The trees are subject to a tree preservation order, however because of the
hazardous nature, do not need full permissions granting in order to carry out work
on them. The Tree Officer has been kept abreast of the situation.

3.4

The area will be replanted with trees of a suitable type to suit the nature of the
ground, for example alder, willow and birch.

3.5

Members of the Parks and Countryside Service have had discussions with the
local Cllr with a view to carrying out community-based replanting days and are
investigating further sources of suitable trees to supplement those from the
services tree nursery.

4.0

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

4.1

There are no significant sustainability impacts associated with this article and, in
particular, no significant impact on crime and disorder.

5.0

FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

5.1

There are some financial/ resource implications arising from this article in respect
of £24,000, however these have been met from existing resources.

6.0

RISK ASSESSMENT

6.1

This Article is for information only and makes no recommendations. It therefore
does not require a formal risk assessment and no changes have been made to
risk registers.

Page 90

7.0

HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The Article primarily relates to the need for an exemption, however the work
carried out impacts on Health and wellbeing in several ways:


The negative potential effects of having to fell mature trees will be mitigated by
replanting.



The Carbon capturing abilities of the new trees will, within a short amount of time,
outweigh the abilities of the previous trees.



Replanting of the site provides an opportunity for the Wellbeing and Leisure
Service to engage positively with the local community and help provide a sense
of ownership in their neighbourhood. It will help people to be more active, give
them an increased connectivity with nature and the local landscape.



Community participation events positively impact on people's health and
wellbeing can help form friendships, reduce social isolation and engender pride in
the area

Background Documents
There are no background documents (as defined in Section 100D(5) of the Local
Government Act 1972) to this Article.
Equality Impact Assessment
This article is for information only and does not have any direct impact on members of
the public, employees, elected members and/ or stakeholders. Therefore no Equality
Impact Assessment is required.

Appendices
None.

Page 91

Agenda Item 3a
ARTICLE NO:
CORPORATE AND ENVIRONMENTAL
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE
MEMBERS UPDATE - 2021/22
ISSUE: 3
_____________________________________________________________________
Article of: Legal & Democratic Services Manager
Contact for further information: Mr Tom Lynan – Electoral Services Manager
(E-mail: tom.lynan@westlancs.gov.uk)
_____________________________________________________________________
SUBJECT:
LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMEN – STATISTICS 2020/21
_____________________________________________________________________
Wards affected: Borough wide
1.0

PURPOSE OF ARTICLE

1.1

To inform Members of the Council’s performance in respect of the Local Government
Ombudsmen statistics 2020/21.

2.0

BACKGROUND

2.1

The Council is overseen by two ombudsmen following changes brought about by the
Localism Act 2011.

2.2

The Housing Ombudsman (HO) deals with complaints by Council housing tenants about
matters such as estate management, repairs to Council house properties, rent and
service charges, possession proceedings and mutual exchanges.

2.3

The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) deals with all other
complaints against the Council across all the services it provides, including complaints by
Council housing tenants about matters such as housing improvement grants,
homelessness and statutory noise nuisance. The Council’s response to enquiries and
complaints received from the LGSCO are co-ordinated by the Legal & Democratic
Services Manager and Electoral Services Manager.

2.4

In July 2021 the LGSCO published an annual review letter which provides a summary of
statistics on enquiries and complaints made in respect of the Council for the period 1 st
April 2020 to 31st March 2021. The annual review letter can be found at Appendix 1.

2.5

At the time of publication, the HO had not published its figures for 2020/21.

3.0

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND SOCIAL CARE OMBUDSMAN PERFORMANCE-2020/21

3.1

During 2020/21 the LGSCO made decisions on 9 enquiries and complaints about the
Council.

Page 93

3.2

Of those 9 matters, 6 were referred back to the Council for local resolution (because the
Council had not had an opportunity to properly consider the enquiry or complaint). 3 were
closed after initial enquires as without merit or outside of their remit. No formal
investigations were completed during this period.

3.3

Using information provided by the LGSCO the table at Appendix 2 allows a comparison of
the Council’s performance with the 11 other non-unitary district councils within
Lancashire. Across Lancashire there were 16 detailed investigations (average 1.3 per
authority) of which 7 (average 0.6 per authority) were upheld.

4.0

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

4.1

There are no significant sustainability impacts associated with this article and, in
particular, no significant impact on crime and disorder.

5.0

FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

5.1

Investigating and co-ordinating responses to enquiries and complaints made to the
Ombudsmen takes officer time for the Electoral Services Manager and for the service
area or multiple areas to which the complaint or enquiry is directed. Given the importance
to the Council in satisfactorily resolving enquires and complaints made by service users
this work stream will continue to receive a high priority.

6.1

RISK ASSESSMENT

6.1

This article is for information only and makes no recommendations. It therefore does not
require a formal risk assessment and no changes have been made to risk registers as a
result of this article.

7.0

HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS

7.1

There are no health and wellbeing implications arising from this report.

Background Documents
There are no background documents (as defined in Section 100D (5) of the Local Government
Act 1972) to this Article.
Equality Impact Assessment
This article is for information only and does not have any direct impact on members of the public,
employees, elected members and/or stakeholders. Therefore, no Equality Impact Assessment is
required.
Appendices
Appendix 1: Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman – Annual Review Letter – West
Lancashire Borough Council – 2020/21
Appendix 2: Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman - Table of Detailed Investigations –
Lancashire Non-Unitary Councils – 2020/21

Page 94

21 July 2021
By email
Ms Sinnott-Lacey
Chief Operating Officer
West Lancashire Borough Council
Dear Ms Sinnott-Lacey
Annual Review letter 2021
I write to you with our annual summary of statistics on the decisions made by the Local
Government and Social Care Ombudsman about your authority for the year ending
31 March 2021. At the end of a challenging year, we maintain that good public administration is
more important than ever and I hope this feedback provides you with both the opportunity to reflect
on your Council’s performance and plan for the future.
You will be aware that, at the end of March 2020 we took the unprecedented step of temporarily
stopping our casework, in the wider public interest, to allow authorities to concentrate efforts on
vital frontline services during the first wave of the Covid-19 outbreak. We restarted casework in
late June 2020, after a three month pause.
We listened to your feedback and decided it was unnecessary to pause our casework again during
further waves of the pandemic. Instead, we have encouraged authorities to talk to us on an
individual basis about difficulties responding to any stage of an investigation, including
implementing our recommendations. We continue this approach and urge you to maintain clear
communication with us.
Complaint statistics
This year, we continue to focus on the outcomes of complaints and what can be learned from
them. We want to provide you with the most insightful information we can and have focused
statistics on three key areas:
Complaints upheld - We uphold complaints when we find some form of fault in an authority’s
actions, including where the authority accepted fault before we investigated.
Compliance with recommendations - We recommend ways for authorities to put things right
when faults have caused injustice and monitor their compliance with our recommendations.
Failure to comply is rare and a compliance rate below 100% is a cause for concern.

Page 95

Satisfactory remedy provided by the authority - In these cases, the authority upheld the
complaint and we agreed with how it offered to put things right. We encourage the early resolution
of complaints and credit authorities that accept fault and find appropriate ways to put things right.
Finally, we compare the three key annual statistics for your authority with similar types of
authorities to work out an average level of performance. We do this for County Councils, District
Councils, Metropolitan Boroughs, Unitary Councils, and London Boroughs.
Your annual data will be uploaded to our interactive map, Your council’s performance, along with a
copy of this letter on 28 July 2021. This useful tool places all our data and information about
councils in one place. You can find the decisions we have made about your Council, public reports
we have issued, and the service improvements your Council has agreed to make as a result of our
investigations, as well as previous annual review letters.
I would encourage you to share the resource with colleagues and elected members; the
information can provide valuable insights into service areas, early warning signs of problems and
is a key source of information for governance, audit, risk and scrutiny functions.
As you would expect, data has been impacted by the pause to casework in the first quarter of the
year. This should be considered when making comparisons with previous year’s data.
Supporting complaint and service improvement
I am increasingly concerned about the evidence I see of the erosion of effective complaint
functions in local authorities. While no doubt the result of considerable and prolonged budget and
demand pressures, the Covid-19 pandemic appears to have amplified the problems and my
concerns. With much greater frequency, we find poor local complaint handling practices when
investigating substantive service issues and see evidence of reductions in the overall capacity,
status and visibility of local redress systems.
With this context in mind, we are developing a new programme of work that will utilise complaints
to drive improvements in both local complaint systems and services. We want to use the rich
evidence of our casework to better identify authorities that need support to improve their complaint
handling and target specific support to them. We are at the start of this ambitious work and there
will be opportunities for local authorities to shape it over the coming months and years.
An already established tool we have for supporting improvements in local complaint handling is
our successful training programme. During the year, we successfully adapted our
face-to-face courses for online delivery. We provided 79 online workshops during the year,
reaching more than 1,100 people. To find out more visit www.lgo.org.uk/training.
Yours sincerely,

Michael King
Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman
Chair, Commission for Local Administration in England

Page 96

West Lancashire Borough Council
For the period ending: 31/03/21

Complaints upheld

The Ombudsman carried out no detailed investigations during this period

Compliance with Ombudsman recommendations

No recommendations were due for compliance in this period

Satisfactory remedy provided by the authority

The Ombudsman did not uphold any detailed investigations during this period

NOTE: To allow authorities to respond to the Covid-19 pandemic, we did not accept new complaints and stopped
investigating existing cases between March and June 2020. This reduced the number of complaints we received
and decided in the 20-21 year. Please consider this when comparing data from previous years.

Page 97

Page 99

Council
Burnley
Chorley
Flyde
Hyndburn
Lancaster
Pendle
Preston
Ribble Valley
Rossendale
South Ribble
West Lancashire
Wyre
Total
Lancashire Average

Complaints
10
11
5
6
9
7
8
2
9
7
9
10
93
7.8

Investigations
3
2
2
1
0
2
1
0
3
2
0
0
16
1.3

Complaints Upheld
2
1
0
1
0
0
1
0
2
0
0
0
7
0.6

% of Complaints Upheld
67%
50%
0%
100%
0%
0%
100%
0%
67%
0%
0%
0%
44%
44%

Agenda Item 3b

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 101

